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Statement of Compliance For year ended 30 June 2014

Hon Donald Terrence Redman
Minister for Lands

In accordance with section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, I hereby submit for your 
information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the Department of Lands for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2014.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006.

Colin Slattery
Director General
Department of Lands
19 September 2014

Contacts
Postal Street Electronic
PO Box 1143 Level 2 Internet: www.lands.wa.gov.au
West Perth 140 William Street Email: info@lands.wa.gov.au
WA 6872 Perth WA 6000 Telephone: 61 8 6552 4400
  Facsimile: 61 8 6552 4417
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Message from the Director General
It is with great pleasure that I present the first 
Annual Report for the Department of Lands 
(DoL).

DoL came into existence on 1 July 2013. There 
has been much work dedicated to building the 
foundations of the department. I would like to 
take this opportunity to thank Mike Bradford for 
making a temporary move from Landgate to 
establish an interim Executive team and all the 
governance required for a new department.

I was proud to be appointed the inaugural 
Director General of Lands in 2014 and the 
full complement of Corporate Executive was 
finalised. The extensive skills and experience of 
the executive team will guide the department 
through our three year reform program.

The establishment of a new department 
is recognition of the importance of land 
administration services to the economic, social 
and business development of the state of 
Western Australia.

Land tenure 
underpins many of 
the state’s resource 
and agricultural 
projects particularly 
in regional areas 
and infrastructure 
projects in the 
metropolitan 
regions. To ensure 
that we provide a reliable, effective and efficient 
land administration system, it is essential that 
we modernise our processes and systems. 
We are also investing in our staff to ensure that 
they have the skills and competencies to deliver 
services through new technologies.

The combination of a new executive team, 
skilled staff and new systems will assist the 
department to unlock the potential of Crown 
land for all Western Australians.

Colin Slattery
Director General

Overview
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Overview continued

Executive Summary
The Department of Lands (DoL) administers 
92% of the land mass of Western Australia. The 
department’s purpose is to unlock the potential 
of Crown land for the economic, business, 
social and environmental benefit of all Western 
Australians, present and future. 92 per cent 
of the State’s area of 2,527,620km2 (above 
high water mark) comprises Crown land; the 
remaining 8 per cent consists of freehold land. 
Freehold land is privately owned land. 

The major categories of tenure within Western 
Australia are included below:

On 1 July 2013 the land administration 
functions of the State Land Services division 
of the Department of Regional Development 
and Lands were excised to form DoL. Building 
a solid foundation for the department has 
required a phase of strategic planning to define 
the vision, purpose and priorities for the agency. 
The Strategic Plan 2014-18 has been officially 
launched. It articulates what we do as an 
agency in providing leadership to government 
on lands policy as well as how we deliver our 
services through a modernisation strategy to 
improve processes and systems.

The strategic priorities will be progressively 
implemented over the next three years. The 
reform program centres on transforming the 
culture, processes, services and systems to 
ensure that we can provide leadership on 
land related matters. This will be achieved 
by building the capacity of staff as well as 
improving processes in land assembly, strategic 
land policy and native title. At the conclusion 
of the reform program, the department will 
have enhanced the skills of its staff who 
deliver an efficient and effective service for key 
stakeholders in Government and industry and 
provide certainty of land tenure for proponents 
and the community.

Leadership in 
land policy

Fast, accurate 
service delivery

Security of 
land tenure

Best 
customer service 

& reputation

Optimise 
the value of the 

State’s land 
assets

Enabled 
people

GOVERNMENT GOAL 

STATE LANDS ARE 
ADMINISTERED TO MEET 
THE STATE’S ECONOMIC,  
SOCIAL AND CULTURAL 
OBJECTIVES

VISION 

PROSPEROUS LANDS FOR  
OUR GROWING STATE

PURPOSE

TO UNLOCK THE POTENTIAL 
OF CROWN LAND FOR ALL 
WESTERN AUSTRALIANS

Strategic Plan 2014-18
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Overview continued

Operational Structure
DoL is comprised of six divisions. They are:

 ■ Regional and Metro Services;
 ■ Land Asset Management and Projects;
 ■ Strategy and Reform;
 ■ Legal Services;
 ■ Business Management Services: and
 ■ Office of the Director General.

Regional and Metro Services
Regional and Metro Services (RMS) provides 
operational advice and services on Crown 
land, including Land Assembly and native title 
negotiations. The division covers the state 
through six regional teams in the districts of:

1. Goldfields Esperance and the Wheatbelt

2. Kimberley

3. Metro Peel

4. Mid-West & Gascoyne

5. Pilbara

6. South West & Great Southern

Land assembly and administration activities 
include the following:

 ■ Leases, licences, easements, access rights, 
land sales and land exchanges.

 ■ Reserves (including conservation, community 
and heritage purposes).

 ■ Dedication and closure of roads.
 ■ Administration of the state’s reserves 

systems.
 ■ Residential, industrial and commercial land 

release (for sale or leasing).
 ■ Land acquisitions.

The Native Title Negotiations and Notifications 
Unit supports the work of the regional teams 
by negotiating with native title holders and 
claimants, ensuring statutory compliance 
of Notices of Intention to Take (NOITTs) and 
registering NOITTs.

A waterhole in the Kimberley on Crown land



DEPARTMENT OF LANDS ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

PAGE 7

Overview continued

Land Asset Management and 
Projects (LAMP)
The Land Asset Management and Projects 
(LAMP) division is comprised of a range of 
business units that support land assembly and 
administration activities in the regional teams 
as well as specialist business activities. With 
the restructure of the department, a new unit of 
Major Projects has been established to provide 
dedicated resources for projects that are of 
significance to the State.

Major Projects
Major Projects provides land assembly 
services for large development projects that 
combined are worth over $60 billion to the 
State economy. The clients are predominantly 
from the resources sector. Land assembly is 
also undertaken for a range of government 
agencies including the department’s of State 
Development, Premier and Cabinet and 
Housing as well as LandCorp.

Infrastructure Corridors
Infrastructure Corridors administers the corridor 
for the Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline 
(DBNGP) in accordance with the Dampier to 
Bunbury Pipeline Act 1997. The corridor 
includes 11 laterals for Carnarvon, Worsley, 
Pinjarra and industry in the Kwinana area.

Contaminated Sites
The department is responsible for identifying 
and reporting contamination on unallocated 
Crown land and unmanaged reserves under 
the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 (CSA). Field 
Officers inspect possible contaminated sites, 
conduct lease inspections to ensure lease 
conditions are met and investigate unauthorised 
activities. Remediation activities have been 
undertaken in the towns of Wittenoom and 
Northampton.

Survey Coordination
The Survey Coordination team undertakes 
Crown cadastral surveys and graphics. This 
ensures that the spatial extent of land tenures 
related to Crown land are accurate and allows 
for registration of Crown land tenure actions at 
Landgate as part of the single land registration 
system in Western Australia.

Property Asset Clearing House (PACH)
The Property Asset Clearing House coordinates 
the disposal of government property to deliver 
value for money outcomes when disposing 
of surplus properties. The activities of PACH 
are overseen by the Property Asset Clearing 
House Steering Committee with representatives 
from government agencies including the 
Departments of Treasury and Finance.

Pastoral Land Unit
The Pastoral Land Unit provides advisory 
services for the Minister for Lands and 
Corporate Executive, supports the board and 
administers the pastoral leases under the 
direction of the board.

DoL’s contaminated site staff working with 
consultants on site

DoL administers Crown land estate to support 
economic growth and changing land needs, 
including the facilitation of major projects
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Overview continued

Strategy and Reform
The Strategy and Reform Division is a newly 
established division that provides strategic 
leadership and manages the department’s 
reform program. The business units within 
the Strategy and Reform division are 
Organisational Planning and Performance, 
Business Improvement, Strategic Policy and 
Organisational Development.

Organisational Planning and Performance 
develops tools to assist the department in 
shaping its strategic direction and monitoring its 
effectiveness. It led the strategic planning and 
business planning processes. The Strategic 
Plan has been finalised and has identified six 
priority areas for DoL covering its operational 
business and the reform program.

The Business Improvement unit develops, 
implements and evaluates business 
improvement tools to enhance organisational 
capability. Its activities cover reform of core 
business processes, strengthening business 
practices and implementing integrated business 
systems.

Organisational Development is developing 
a workforce plan to ensure that the 
department has a workforce with the right 
mix of people, knowledge and behaviours 
to deliver its strategic priorities. Work was 
commenced on the performance management 
and development plan and learning and 
development program.

The Strategic Policy unit coordinates land policy 
matters across Government and streamlining 
its policy database. The rangelands reform 
project is managed through this unit.

Legal Services
The Legal Services Division provides legal 
services to the Minister, the Director General 
and staff. The advice extends to drafting and 
negotiating Crown land tenure documents 
in complex land transactions, legal advice 
in relation to all aspects of the department’s 
operations and participates in policy formulation 
and legislative proposals.

Business Management Services
The role of Business Management Services 
(BMS) is to deliver business services to 
support the department’s operations. BMS is 
responsible for:

 ■ Managing the department’s financial 
resources.

 ■ Coordinating and managing operational 
corporate services provided under a bureau 
services arrangement by the Department of 
Regional Development;

 ■ Managing the department’s statutory 
reporting, compliance obligations and audit 
services.

Office of the Director General
The Office of the Director General provides 
strategic advice and support for the Director 
General. It also coordinates Ministerial and 
Parliamentary processes and liaises with 
the office of the Minister for Lands, external 
stakeholders and other government agencies.

The Office of the Director General is  
responsible for:

 ■ Executive Support to the Director General
 ■ Ministerial and Parliamentary Services
 ■ Strategic Stakeholder Engagement
 ■ Communication Services
 ■ Freedom of Information Coordination

DoL staff from the Office of the Director General
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Overview continued

Pastoral Lands Board
The Pastoral Lands Board (Board) is a statutory 
authority established under section 94 of 
the Land Administration Act 1997 (LAA). It is 
responsible for the administration of Western 
Australian pastoral leases under Part 7 of the 
Act. The Board has statutory responsibilities to 
ensure that pastoral leases are managed in an 
ecologically sustainable way and to establish 
and evaluate a system of pastoral land 
monitoring sites.

There are 452 pastoral stations that are 
comprised of 507 pastoral leases covering 
87 million hectares or 34% of Western 
Australia. Most of the State’s pastoral leases 
are in the Kimberley, Pilbara, Gascoyne, 
Murchison, Goldfields and Nullarbor regions. 
The leases are held by individuals, pastoral 
companies, Aboriginal groups, mining 
companies and conservation groups. The 
Board works closely with the department and 
the Minister to address compliance issues for 
lessees and to meet lease renewal conditions.

In April 2014 the Board approved an 
investigation for an integrated monitoring 
system using Landsat satellite imagery and 
ground-based assessments to report on the 
condition of the pastoral rangelands.

Other significant achievements include:
 ■ Reviewing and assessing Board directives 

for lessee compliance to meet 2015 pastoral 
lease renewal conditions.

 ■ Improving processes for Part 7 Division 
5 permits.

 ■ Supporting initiatives such as Seizing the 
Opportunity project on pastoral stations.

 ■ Responding to the Parliamentary Inquiry into 
Pastoral Leases in Western Australia.

 ■ Providing comments on the 2015 draft 
Pastoral Lease to the DoL.

Enabling Legislation
DoL was established as a department 
on 1 July 2013 under the Public Sector 
Management Act 1994.

Responsible Minister
The Hon. Donald Terrence (Terry) Redman, 
BSc, DipEd MLA, Minister for Regional 
Development; Lands; Minister Assisting the 
Minister for State Development; Leader of the 
National Party of Australia (WA).

The Hon. Donald Terrence  
(Terry) Redman
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Overview continued

Organisational Structure

Vision
Prosperous lands for our growing state.

Purpose
To unlock the potential of Crown land for all 
Western Australians.

Our promises
We will be accurate and timely

We will help find solutions

We will be transparent and fair

We will respect our land and people

Organisational Chart

Minister
for Lands

Director General

Manager 
Executive 
Services

Manager 
Communications
and Stakeholder

Relations

Executive Director 
Regional and 
Metro Services

Executive Director
Strategy and

Reform

General Counsel
Legal Services

Director Business
Management 

Services

Executive Director
Land Asset 

Management 
and Projects

Pastoral
Lands Board
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Overview continued

Director General
Colin Slattery
Director General

The appointment of Colin 
as Lands’ Director General 
in December 2013 is a 
significant step forward for 
the agency. He brings with 
him extensive experience 

in implementing State Government strategies 
and has been responsible for the delivery of the 
Royalties for Regions program. 

Most recently Colin was Executive Director 
Development and Diversification with the 
Department of Regional Development (DRD). 
Colin was Director Regional Investment with 
the Department of Regional Development and 
Lands (RDL).

Executive Directors
Declan Morgan
(Acting) Executive Director Regional and 
Metro Services

Declan has 16 years’ experience in the public 
service, starting his career at the Water and 
Rivers Commission. He then worked with 
the former Department of Environment as 
Regional Manager for Kwinana Peel, acted as 
Assistant Director of Regional Services for the 
Department of Environment and Conservation 
and was appointed as Director State Land 
Services with RDL in 2010.

Anthony DeBarro
(Acting) Executive Director Land Access 
Management and Projects

Tony joined the department in October 
2013. He has experience working in senior 
management roles at the Department of 
Housing. His involvement in land development 
and housing construction assisted him in 
managing government property assets.

Amanda Hughes
(Acting) Executive Director 
Strategy and Reform

Amanda was recruited to 
DoL in September 2013 to 
lead the reform program 
at the newly created 
department. Amanda 
has experience in leading 

complex reform agendas in the financial 
services sector in the United Kingdom. She has 
advised on the compliance and legal aspects of 
UK financial services as the Head of Legal for a 
top six UK life assurance organisation. Amanda 
joined the state public sector in 2010 with 
the Department of Housing. As A/g Director 
Strategic Co-ordination, she worked on the 
State Affordable Housing Strategy; Opening 
Doors to Affordable Housing 2010 – 2020.

Sandra Eckert
General Counsel,  
Legal Services

Sandra has over 25 years’ 
experience in commercial 
property law in both 
government and private 
practice. She has provided 

legal advice on Crown land administration for 
over 15 years and was appointed General 
Counsel in the former Department of Regional 
Development and Lands in February 2010.

Richard Gell
(Acting) Director, Business Management 
Services

Richard has a background in information 
technology and has worked for 15 years in the 
state public sector in Information Technology, 
strategy and planning and corporate services 
roles.
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Overview continued

Administered Legislation
The department assists the Minister for Lands 
in administrating the following Acts:

Albany Lot 184 (Validation of Title) Act 1956

Anglican Church of Australia Diocesan Trustees 
and Lands Act 1918

Anglican Church of Australia Lands Vesting  
Act 1892

Anglican Church of Australia School Lands  
Act 1896

Browse (Land) Agreement Act 2012

Cambridge Endowment Lands Act 1920

Canning Lands Revestment Act 1954

Caves House Disposal Act 1965

Chevron-Hilton Hotel Agreement Act 1960

City of Perth (Lathlain Park Reserves) Act 1950

City of Perth (Leederville Park Lands) Act 1950

East Carey Park Land Vesting Act 1957

Fremantle City Council Lands Act 1929

Fremantle Endowment Lands Act 1929

Fremantle Reserves Surrender Act 1912

Geraldton Agricultural and Horticultural 
Society’s Land Act 1914

Geraldton Sailors and Soldiers’ Memorial 
Institute Lands Vesting Act 1933

Jennacubbine Sports Council (Incorporated) 
Act 1965

Land Administration Act 1997

Land Administration Amendment Act 2000

Native Mission Stations Act 1923

Parks and Reserves Act 1895

Perth Town Hall Act 1950

Perth Town Hall Agreement Act 1953

Reserves Acts (various)

Resumption Variation (Boulder-Kambalda Road) 
Act 1973

Roman Catholic New Norcia Church Property 
Act 1929

Special Lease (Gypsum) Act 1918

Special Lease (Lake Clifton) Act 1916

Special Lease (Stirling Estate) Act 1916

Special Lease Enabling Act 1914

Town of Claremont (Exchange of Land)  
Act 1964

War Service Land Settlement Scheme  
Act 1954

Other Legislation Impacting on the 
Department of Lands’ Activities
In the performance of its functions, the 
Department complies with the following relevant 
written laws:

A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) 
Act 1999 (Commonwealth)

Auditor General Act 2006

Contaminated Sites Act 2003

Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003

Dampier to Bunbury Pipeline Act 1997

Disability Services Act 1993

Equal Opportunity Act 1984

Financial Management Act 2006

Freedom of Information Act 1992

Industrial Relations Act 1979

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993

Native Title Act 1993 (Commonwealth)

Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984

Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003

Public Sector Management Act 1994

Salaries and Allowances Act 1975

State Records Act 2000

State Supply Commission Act 1991

Workers Compensation and Injury Management 
Act 1981
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Overview continued

Performance Management Framework
Government goals are supported at 
agency level by specific outcomes. The key 
effectiveness indicator measures the extent of 
impact of the delivery of services on achieving 
desired outcomes. The key efficiency indicator 
monitors the relationship between the service 
delivered and the resources used to produce 
the service.

Outcome Based Management 
Framework

Government Goal – 
Stronger Focus on the Regions:
Greater focus on service delivery, infrastructure 
investment and economic development to 
improve the overall quality of life in remote and 
regional areas.

Outcome
State lands are administered to meet the 
State’s economic, social and cultural objectives.

Service
State Land Administration

Key Effectiveness Indicator
Percentage of customers satisfied that the 
management and use of Crown land is 
supporting the State’s economic, social and 
cultural objectives.

Key Efficiency Indicator
Cost per Crown land action.

Changes to Outcome Based 
Management Framework
DoL was established on 1 July 2013. The 
outcome, service and key performance 
indicators have been transferred from the 
former Department of Regional Development 
and Lands. DoL will review its outcomes, 
services and key performance indicators in 
2014-15.

Shared Responsibilities with  
Other Agencies
DoL works in partnership with government and 
non-government organisations to provide land 
assembly and tenure solutions and advice on 
policy and legislation.

DoL is a proactive member of a number of 
strategic multi-agency working groups in areas 

such as land availability, government land asset 
management, native title and the security of 
Crown land tenure. As the agency responsible 
for administering the Land Administration 
Act 1997, DoL is regularly required to liaise 
with a variety of stakeholders on tenure and 
acquisition of land for state significant projects 
such as the Perth City Link. DoL manages 
a variety of issues related to native title in 
conjunction with the Department of the Premier 
and Cabinet.

The department works with the Department of 
Housing, Department of Mines and Petroleum, 
Department of Parks and Wildlife, Department 
of the Premier and Cabinet, Department 
of Regional Development, Department of 
State Development, State Solicitor’s Office, 
LandCorp, Landgate and other state and 
local government agencies on the timely 
release of Crown land for residential, industrial, 
commercial and infrastructure purposes as well 
as community, social and cultural purposes.

DoL participates on legislative steering 
committees to provide advice to agencies 
on land tenure and related issues including 
the Ports Amalgamation Working Group, and 
the Emergency Services Legislation Working 
Group. As the manager of the pastoral estate, 
DoL works closely with the Department of 
Agriculture and Food (DAFWA) and industry on 
the statutory obligations of pastoral lessees.
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Report on Operations
The Department of Lands administers Crown 
land under the Land Administration Act 1997. 
The key functions of the department include:

 ■ responsibility for unallocated Crown land and 
unmanaged reserves

 ■ administering pastoral leases and providing 
support to the Pastoral Lands Board

 ■ land assembly for residential, industrial, 
infrastructure corridor, conservation and 
community needs

 ■ management of the Dampier to Bunbury Gas 
Pipeline infrastructure corridor

 ■ investigating, identifying, reporting and 
managing contamination on Crown land

 ■ disposing of surplus government land and 
buildings.

To carry out these functions, the department 
has over 140 staff based in Perth and regional 
offices in Bunbury and Kununurra.

Key achievements and other 
highlights

Regional and Metro Services

Karratha City of the North Project
The project is funded under the Royalties for 
Regions Pilbara Cities program in partnership 
with the Pilbara Development Commission. 
The achievements include the transfer of the 
former Aquatic Centre area to LandCorp, land 
clearances for a new Cultural Precinct and 
finalising tenures for the Health Campus and 
Super Clinic. Monthly meetings with the City of 
Karratha, LandCorp and Pilbara Development 
Commission have strengthened the project 
planning and development activities.

South Hedland Town Centre Revitalisation 
Project
As part of the $1 billion Royalties for Regions 
Pilbara Cities program, DoL is working with 
the Pilbara Development Commission, Town 
of Port Hedland and LandCorp to facilitate the 
South Hedland Town Centre Revitalisation. In 
2013-14, approximately 350 residential lots 
were brought to the market with residential land 
being developed by the Department of Housing 
in 2014-15.

Agency Performance
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Agency Performance continued

Kununurra Ord Valley Agricultural Land 
Release
The Ord Final Agreement Indigenous Land Use 
Agreement surrenders native title rights and 
interests over land in the Kununurra Packsaddle 
Valley. This Agreement will allow for the granting 
of leasehold or fee simple land for agricultural 
development. DoL and the Department of 
Regional Development released an Expression 
of Interest (EOI) to develop approximately 400 
hectares of land.

New Perth Stadium land assembly  
(formerly Burswood Stadium)
DoL is working with the Department of 
Sport and Recreation and other project 
stakeholders to establish the new 60 000-
seat Perth Stadium and Sports Precinct and 
new major transport initiatives in and around 
the Burswood Peninsula. Site development 
works commenced in 2013-14 with the target 
completion date of March 2018.

South West Native Title Settlement Project
In 2009, a South West Settlement Heads 
of Agreement between the State and the 
South West Aboriginal Land and Sea Council 
(SWALSC) was signed. The Agreement is 
intended to resolve native title matters in the 
South West with native title being extinguished 
in return for other benefits. DoL is working 
with the Department of the Premier and 
Cabinet to identify up to 320 000 hectares of 
Crown land that is suitable for transfer to the 
Noongar Boodja (Land) Trust as part of the 
South West Native Title Settlement Project. The 
Government is negotiating with SWALSC to 
provide land access for traditional owners for 
customary purposes through a non-exclusive 
Licence.

Land Asset Management and Projects

Northampton Lead Tailings Project
In April 2013, DoL was tasked with responding 
to the contamination issues associated with 
the presence of lead tailings in the town of 
Northampton. Extensive consultation has been 
undertaken with the community and government 
stakeholders with an 80% participation rate. The 
initial findings indicate that 72% of properties 
do not have any evidence of tailings and the 
remaining lots require further investigation. The 
project is continuing with additional assessment 
and identification of remediation treatment where 
required.

Ord irrigation scheme
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Agency Performance continued

ANSIA (Ashburton North Strategic Industrial 
Area)
The impact of the Wheatstone (Chevron) 
and Macedon (BHP Billiton) Projects on the 
Shire of Ashburton has created a demand for 
residential and industrial land around the town 
of Onslow. DoL has assembled a significant 
amount of unallocated Crown land in Onslow 
for the Barrada subdivision. Barrada is the first 
stage of the “Onslow Town-site Strategy” vision 
to address the shortage of residential land in 
Onslow and provide up to 1400 homes.

DoL is also undertaking land assembly in the 
light industrial areas in Onslow and developing 
a general industry area in the ANSIA to service 
proponents that support LNG processing.

A State Development Agreement between the 
State and Chevron Australia (Wheatstone) is 
providing social infrastructure for the Shire of 
Ashburton and Onslow. DoL is working with 
stakeholders to upgrade power and water 
utilities and roads and create a new recreation 
precinct.

Wittenoom Management Project
The Wittenoom Asbestos Management Area is 
the largest contaminated site in the southern 
hemisphere. Blue asbestos fibres are present in 
the residual mine tailing stockpiles, the gorges 
and floodplains and within the town site. DoL 
is leading the project to finalise the closure 
of the townsite, identify remedial actions and 
work with industry to ensure safe development 
within the area. DoL has reconvened an 
intergovernmental Steering Committee to 
pursue key management issues finalising the 
closure of the townsite, identifying the preferred 
remedial approach for the residual asbestos 
tailings in the former mining areas within the 
Wittenoom Gorge, communicate health risks 
posed by the area with known user groups and 
work with industry to ensure safe development 
within the area.

2015 Pastoral Lease Renewal Project
All pastoral leases will expire on 30 June 2015. 
Two lease options have been developed based 
on feedback provided by pastoral lessees 
from the draft leases that were distributed 
in July 2013. A total of seven regional and 
metropolitan consultation sessions have been 
held with lessees on the two lease options. The 
fora were well attended by a total of 272 people 
including 144 pastoral lessees. The leases 
will be distributed to lessees who meet the 
requirements for lease renewal.

Works on Crown land in Onslow DoL Pastoral 2015 Liaison Officer Alice Benz with 
Alana Cameron at Adelong Station near Menzies
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Agency Performance continued

Inquiry into Pastoral Leases in Western Australia
The Standing Committee on Public 
Administration held an Inquiry into Pastoral 
Leases in Western Australia. The Report 
was handed down in April 2014. DoL is 
implementing the recommendations from the 
Report. An extensive communications plan 
has been implemented to ensure that lessees 
and stakeholders are engaged in the renewal 
process and aware of all facets of the process 
including the expiry of all encumbrances 
against the lease on 30 June 2015.

Cape Preston East (Port)
DoL is working with Pilbara Port Authority to 
create a multi-user transhipping port reserve for 
the export of and trade in bulk minerals including 
iron ore and other commodities. Iron Ore 
Holdings Pty Ltd will be the foundation proponent 
and the port will underpin an export supply chain 
solution for its planned Buckland Hill Project.

Strategy and Reform

Lifting the Notice of Intention to Take (NOITT) 
moratorium
As a result of significant deficiencies identified 
in 2012, DoL imposed a moratorium on issuing 
Notices of Intention to Take (NOITTs). Security 
of land tenure is critical for an effective land 
administration system. A key priority for the 
department throughout 2013-14 was the 
review of the NOITT processes. The successful 
completion of Phase 1 of the review resulted in 
a lifting of the moratorium in December 2013. 
Since January 2014, the compliance team has 
successfully completed two new NOITTs using 
the revised process. Of the pre-existing NOITTs, 
a number of them have been reviewed and, 
where required, reissued or remediated.

Process improvement and applying a 
competency-based training response  
- Notice of Intention to Take (NOITT)
A key component of the reform program 
is the development and implementation of 
competency based training for staff. Given 
the high priority of the NOITT improvement 
project, it was one of the first training packages 
to be launched. The project was scoped and 
resourced to deliver consistent and replicable 
processes under Land Administration Act 1997 
(LAA) and Native Title Act 1993 (NTA) for the 
compulsory acquisition of interests in land.

As at 30 June, there were 65 graduates from 
the training. Further training to complete the 
current target group will be completed in 
2014/15 and then it will move into maintenance 
mode to ensure new, relevant staff are trained.

In addition to this, DoL has been engaging with 
external stakeholders on NOITT processes. 
Information sessions have been held with 
government agencies to assist their knowledge 
and understanding of NOITTs. DoL has 
held sessions with the Department of State 
Development and Department of the Premier 
and Cabinet as well as LandCorp. Elements 
of the competency-based training have been 
utilised in these exercises to ensure that 
stakeholders too have information to be able 
to contribute to processes for the compulsory 
acquisition of interests in land including native 
title.
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Agency Performance continued

Financial Overview
The Department of Lands in 2013-14:

 ■ Received a Government Appropriation of $27.168 million for the first full year of operations.
 ■ Received Resources free of charge from Landgate ($4.699 million), Department of Finance 

($0.258 million) and State Solicitors Office ($0.273 million).
 ■ Received Rents and Leases of $5.531 million and User Charges and Fees ($0.581 million).
 ■ Expensed $16.120 million on employment of staff and $12.666 million on supplies and services.
 ■ Expensed $2.230 million on accommodation.
 ■ Paid out grants totalling $0.701 million.
 ■ Achieved an underlying operating surplus of $5.950 million eroded by the impact of the revaluation 

of the pastoral lease estate, resulting in an overall deficit for the financial year of $126.978 million. 
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Agency Performance continued

Revenue
Total Operating Revenue for 2013-14 was $39.240 million.

Revenue Budget Actual Variance
Service appropriation $19,771 $27,168 $7,397
Services received free of charge $4,628 $5,230 $602
Royalties for Regions Fund $600 $30 -$570
Rents & Leases $5,164 $5,531 $367
User charges and fees $68 $581 $513
Other revenue $22 $700 $678

$30,253 $39,240 $8,987

The Department of Lands receives revenue from the State Government as an appropriation to fund 
its service. The department also generates its own source revenues from its operations from pastoral 
leases and proceeds from rental properties rents. Rents and Leases made up 14.1% of Lands 
revenue base. A downward revaluation of the pastoral estate in 2014-15, and the effects from the 
global financial crisis and the ceasing of live cattle export operations will have an adverse impact on 
pastoral lease rents in 2014-15. Resources received free of charge accounted for 13.3% of Land’s 
revenue base in 2013-14.

The State Government funding provided 69.2% of Land’s revenue base in 2013-14.
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Agency Performance continued

Expenditure
Total operating expenditure for 2013-14 was $166.218 million.

Total Cost of Services Budget Actual Variance
Employee benefits $14,250 $16,120 $1,870
Supplies and services $10,722 $12,666 $1,944
Accommodation $1,941 $2,230 $289
Grants and subsidies $450 $701 $251
Other $2,731 $1,534 -$1,197
Impairment Losses $0 $132,928 $132,928
Depreciation and amortisation $14 $39 $25

$30,108 $166,218 $136,110

Employee benefits comprising of Salaries, wages and staffing costs accounted for 9.7% 
($16.120 million) of expenditure. This included direct costs of employee salaries and wages, costs 
of providing for leave liabilities and indirect payroll costs such as superannuation and workers’ 
compensation. 

Supplies and Services accounted for 7.6% ($12.666 million) of expenditure which includes payment 
to the Department of Regional Development for Corporate Service functions provided under a 
Service Level Agreement (SLA) at a cost of $2.134 million and Information Technology related 
services at a cost of $1.060 million in 2013-14. Accommodation expenses accounted for 1.3% 
($2.230 million) of expenditure and related to building rentals and outgoings ($1.308 million), Parking 
($0.057 million) and other ($0.865 million).  Grants and subsidies accounted for 0.4% of total 
expenses in 2013-14. 

Impairment loss has been expenses and accounts for 79.9% ($132.928 million) as a result of the 
pastoral land estate revaluations.
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Agency Performance continued

Assets and Liabilities
Total assets at the end of the period were $179.2 million including $162.3 million for Property, plant 
and equipment

Assets $000
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $8,001
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents

$5,404

Receivables $1,403
Other current assets $211
Total Current Assets $15,019

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents

$484

Amounts receivable for services $1,449
Property, Plant and equipment $162,266
Total Non-Current Assets $164,199
TOTAL ASSETS $179,218

Liabilities $000
Current Liabilities
Payables $978
Provisions $2,827
Other liabilities $71
Total Current Liabilities $3,876

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions $627
Total Non-Current Liabilities $627
TOTAL LIABILITIES $4,503

Cash and Restricted cash resources of 
$13.4 million included restricted cash of 
$5.4 million for expenditure associated with 
Contaminated Sites ($3.409 million) and the 
Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline 
($1.994 million).

Total liabilities at the end of the reporting period 
were $4.5 million. Liabilities include $3.5 million 
in provisions relating to annual and long service 
leave.
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Agency Performance continued

Financial Targets

2013-14 2013-14
Target  

$000
Actual 

$000
Variation 

$000
Variation 

%
Total cost of services (expense limit) 30,108 166,218 136,110 81.89%
Net cost of services 24,854 159,406 134,552 84.41%
Total equity 266,134 174,715 -91,419 -52.32%
Approved FTE staff level 150 166 16 10.67%

The major variations to the financial targets set for 2013-14 include:
 ■ Expense - a review of the Pastoral Land Estate is conducted every five years under the Land 

Administration Act 1997.  In 2013-14 the Valuer General has undertaken a review that has resulted 
in a decline in the value of the Pastoral Land Estate.  The decline in value is related to the effects 
of the Global Financial Crisis and the temporary ceasing of the live cattle export trade.  Due to the 
creation of Department of Lands on 1 July 2013, it has no asset revaluation reserves as it is now 
as per TI 955, part of contributed equity from the State.

 ■ Revenues – increase in the service appropriation as part of the government’s funding of the Land 
Reform Program of the new agency (Lands).
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Agency Performance continued

Key Performance Indicators 
Department of Lands Certification of Key Performance Indicators for the Year Ended 30 June 2014

I hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and 
appropriate for assisting users to assess the Department of Lands performance, and fairly represent 
the performance of the Department of Lands for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

Colin Slattery
Director General Lands
(Accountable Authority)
18 September 2014
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Agency Performance continued

Desired Outcome:

State lands are administered to meet 
the State’s economic, social and cultural 
objectives.
The Land Administration Act 1997 (LAA) is 
the State’s legislation providing for disposition 
and management of Crown land.  This Act is 
administered by the Minister for Lands and is 
assisted by the Department of Lands (DoL).

The department administers and manages the 
State’s Crown land estate to support the needs 
of the community of Western Australia, optimise 
the estate and ultimately benefit current and 
future generations, and to deliver primary land 
tenure for strategic State infrastructure projects.    
In 2013-14 DoL managed over 2,000 pastoral 
and general leases and settled approximately 
$93 million in sales of Crown land for future 
development.

Effectiveness Indicator:

Percentage of customers satisfied that 
the management and use of Crown land is 
supporting the State’s economic, social and 
cultural objectives.
The primary users of State Land Services 
Division services are other State government 
agencies and local governments.   The extent 
to which these stakeholders are satisfied 
that their needs are supported by the State 
Land Services Division is an indicator of the 
department’s effectiveness.

A stakeholder survey conducted by 
independent consultants asked these 
stakeholders to rate their satisfaction with State 
Land Services Division services as well as 
asking to what extent they felt Crown land has 
been provided to meet the State’s economic, 
social and cultural objectives.  Those surveyed 
were also asked to rate the department’s 
management of risk, on Crown land under its 
control.

An independent research consultancy was 
commissioned in May 2014 to complete the 
client survey on the department’s behalf for the 
2013-14 Financial Year.  A total of 207 surveys 
were completed from 256 valid client contacts 
supplied by Lands.  This gives a maximum 
standard error ratio of +/-3.0% at the 95% 

confidence level, exceeding the requirements 
of the Office of the Auditor General for state 
government agency annual reporting of a 
maximum standard error ratio of +/- 5% at the 
95% confidence level.   The response rate of 
81% also exceeds the Office of the Auditor 
General’s requirements of a minimum response 
of 50%.

18 per cent of all land in WA comprises reserves 
including conservation estate lands
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Agency Performance continued

Efficiency Indicator 

Service 1: State Land Administration
The Department of Lands administers and 
manages Crown land to support the needs 
of the community of Western Australia and 
to deliver primary land tenure for strategic 
infrastructure projects.  The department works 
in close partnership with private and public 
entities to ensure that land needs are met in a 
sustainable and responsible manner.

The cost per Crown land action is calculated 
by dividing the total recurrent actuals for 
the financial year for State Land Services 
by the number of Crown land actions. A 
Crown land action occurs when any type of 
registrable document created via the Document 
Processing System is lodged at Landgate by 
State Land Services staff.  Crown land actions 
also include issued surveys, and the number 
of tenure searches, inspections and rent re-
appraisals which are tracked and reported on a 
monthly basis.  No change has been applied to 
the methodology and data to the 2013-14 KPI 
in line with Under Treasurer’s approval.

2013-14 2013-14
Desired Outcome Service Key Effectiveness Indicator Target Actual
State Lands are 
administered to 
meet the State’s 
economic, social and 
cultural objectives.

Percentage of customers 
satisfied that the management 
and use of Crown land 
is supporting the State’s 
economic, social and cultural 
objectives.

75% 83%

State Land 
Administration

Key Efficiency Indicator
Cost per Crown land action $5,460 $6,302

The effectiveness KPI for the 2013-14 results exceeds the targeted stakeholder satisfaction rate due 
to the quality of the service provided.

The variation between the target and actuals for the efficiency KPI is due to:
 ■ The impact of the separation of the land services functions of the Department of Regional 

Development and Lands with the creation of the Department of Lands from 1 July 2013 as part of 
the Government’s 2013-14 machinery of government changes. 

 ■ A substantial increase in the Department’s recurrent expenditure from 2012-13 to 2013-14 
particularly for non-operational expenses including the reform program.  The growth in FTEs for 
the agency was 11.8% in 2013-14.

 ■ Longer processing times for Crown land actions as a result of the increase in the scale and 
complexity of land assembly for resource and agricultural projects and the interface between the 
Native Title Act 1993 (Commonwealth) and the Land Administration Act 1997 (WA).

 ■ Note: The efficiency KPI calculation does not include expenses relating to the revaluation of the 
Pastoral Land Estate, revalued every five years under the Land Administration Act 1997.
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Current and emerging issues and trends
 ■ The demand for Crown land services has 

increased dramatically over the last decade 
with an increase in the number, scale and 
complexity of resource and agricultural 
projects. There have been additional 
constraints from the highly legalistic 
environment of land administration and the 
interface between the Native Title Act 1993 
(Cth) and the Land Administration Act 1997 
(WA).

 ■ There has been a lack of investment in 
land services in recent decades. The 
department’s systems and processes are 
archaic and need to be upgraded to maintain 
industry relevance. The reform program at 
DoL will address business improvement 
across the agency.

 ■ Native title processes are complex and 
there are potential liabilities to the State. A 
dedicated notifications branch has been 
established to review NOITTs (including 
native title) and LAA processes and 
procedures to ensure that land actions are 
compliant with State and Commonwealth 
legislation.

 ■ Development leases have been used to 
expedite the development of Crown land and 
to prevent landbanking. These leases are 
used prior to transferring the land in freehold 
to a developer. The effect of a GST ruling 
and a decision on sales off the plan may 
have an impact on the utility of development 
leases in the future.

 ■ Most pastoralists in Western Australia saw 
a reduction in the rent due on their pastoral 
leases with the completion of the 2014 
review of pastoral rent. Some lessees on 
the minimum rent, however, faced small 
increases.

The decrease in lease rents alleviated some 
concerns in the industry regarding the 
affordability of managing pastoral stations. 

The Land Administration Act 1997 requires a 
review of pastoral rent to be undertaken by 
the State’s Valuer General every five years. 
The rent review is based on current market 
conditions and reflects increasing costs, live 
export restrictions and cattle prices which 
have all had a significant impact on the 
industry in recent years.

Significant Issues Impacting the Agency



DEPARTMENT OF LANDS ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

PAGE 27

Significant Issues Impacting the Agency continued

 ■ All pastoral leases in Western Australia will 
expire on 30 June 2015. The department 
is working with lessees and industry 
representatives to ensure all leases eligible 
for renewal are renewed on 1 July 2015.

In response to industry feedback, 
pastoralists have been offered a choice 
of two renewal options. The first option is 
renewal of a lease which references the 
terms and conditions of the existing pastoral 
lease granted under the repealed Land Act 
1933. 

The second renewal option is a new lease 
document that explains the terms and 
conditions in modern language with greater 
clarity and updated references to the current 
Land Administration Act 1997.

In May and June 2014, the department held 
consultation forums in various locations in 
the north of the State and Perth to discuss 
both options and seek feedback to ensure 
the lease renewal options are useful business 
tools for pastoralists. Pastoralists compliant 
with renews conditions are expected to 
be supplied with lease renewal options for 
signing in November 2014.

Changes in written law
There were no changes in any written law that 
materially affected the department during the 
financial year.

Likely developments and forecast 
results of operations
The impact of becoming a separate department 
will continue with the reform program gathering 
momentum.

The cost per land action is anticipated to 
continue to rise.

Rangeland Condition Monitoring a new self assesment system was established for rangelands pastoralists
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Auditor General 

Page 1 of 3 
 

7th Floor Albert Facey House 469 Wellington Street Perth  MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849  TEL: 08 6557 7500  FAX: 08 6557 7600 

   
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
DEPARTMENT OF LANDS 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Department of Lands. 
 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014, the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows 
and Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates for the year then 
ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, including Administered transactions and balances. 
 
Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Director General is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Director General determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements 
relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Department’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Director General, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Department of Lands at 30 June 2014 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Report on Controls 
I have audited the controls exercised by the Department of Lands during the year ended  
30 June 2014. 
 
Controls exercised by the Department of Lands are those policies and procedures established 
by the Director General to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions. 
 
Director General’s Responsibility for Controls 
The Director General is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to 
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of 
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Department of Lands based on my audit conducted in accordance with 
Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of controls 
to ensure that the Department complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and implementation 
of relevant controls. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department of Lands are sufficiently adequate to 
provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Report on the Key Performance Indicators 
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Department of Lands for the year ended  
30 June 2014.  
 
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
Director General’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators 
The Director General is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key 
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Director General determines necessary to 
ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
and Assurance Standards.  
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Director General’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of 
outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Department of Lands are relevant and 
appropriate to assist users to assess the Department’s performance and fairly represent 
indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements.  
 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators 
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
Department of Lands for the year ended 30 June 2014 included on the Department’s website. 
The Department’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Department’s website. This 
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Department’s website. The auditor’s 
report refers only to the financial statements and key performance indicators described above. 
It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from 
these financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the financial statements and 
key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a 
website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements and key 
performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this website version of the 
financial statements and key performance indicators. 
 

 
COLIN MURPHY 
AUDITOR GENERAL  
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA 
Perth, Western Australia 
22 September 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report continued
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Disclosure and Legal Compliance

Financial Statements

Certification of Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2014

The accompanying financial statements of the Department of Lands have been prepared in 
compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and 
records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the 
financial position as at 30 June 2014.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars 
included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 

Alan Abraham Colin Slattery
Chief Finance Officer Director General
19 September 2014 19 September 2014
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Disclosure and Legal Compliance continued

Statement of Comprehensive Income For the year ended 30 June 2014 Note 2014

$000
COST OF SERVICES

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 6 16,120
Supplies and services 7 12,666
Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 39
Accommodation expenses 9 2,230
Grants and subsidies 10 701
Impairment Losses 21 132,928
Other expenses 11 1,534
Total cost of services 166,218

Income
Revenue
User charges and fees 12 6,112
Other revenue 13 700
Total income other than income from State Government 6,812
NET COST OF SERVICES 159,406

Income from State Government 14
Service appropriation 27,168
Services received free of charge 5,230
Royalties for Regions Fund 30
Total income from State Government 32,428
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (126,978)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (126,978)

As this is the first reporting period for the Department of Lands, which was established and designated effective from 1 July 2013, there are no 
comparative figures to disclose. The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Disclosure and Legal Compliance continued

Statement of Financial Position As at 30 June 2014 Note 2014

$000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 26 8,001
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15, 26 5,404
Receivables 16 1,403
Other current assets 18  211 
Total Current Assets 15,019

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15, 26 484
Amounts receivable for services 17 1,449
Property, Plant and equipment 19 162,266
Total Non-Current Assets 164,199
TOTAL ASSETS 179,218

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 22 978
Provisions 23 2,827
Other liabilities 24 71
Total Current Liabilities 3,876

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 23 627
Total Non-Current Liabilities 627

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,503
NET ASSETS 174,715
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Disclosure and Legal Compliance continued

Statement of Financial Position As at 30 June 2014 continued Note 2014

$000

EQUITY
Contributed Equity 25 301,693
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)  (126,978)
TOTAL EQUITY 174,715

As this is the first reporting period for the Department of Lands, which was established and designated effective from  
1 July 2013, there are no comparative figures to disclose.
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Disclosure and Legal Compliance continued

Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note Contributed equity Accumulated 
surplus/(deficit) Total equity

$000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 July 2013 25  -  -  - 
Surplus/(Deficit)  - (126,978) (126,978)
Total comprehensive income for the period  - (126,978 ) (126,978) 

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Capital appropriations  450  -  450 
Other contributions by owners  301,243  -  301,243 
Total 301,693  - 301,693
Balance at 30 June 2014 301,693 (126,978) 174,715

As this is the first reporting period for the Department of Lands, which was established and 
designated effective from 1 July 2013, there are no comparative figures to disclose.

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 June 2014 Note 2014

$000
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation  27,168 
Capital appropriation  450 
Royalties for Regions Fund  30 
Net cash provided by State Government 27,648

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (15,613)
Supplies and services (7,483)
Accommodation (2,230)
Grants and subsidies (701)
GST payments on purchases (3,153)
Other payments (1,534)

Receipts
User charges and fees 6,133
GST receipts on sales 726
GST Receipts from taxation authority 2,781
Other receipts 189
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 26 (20,885)
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Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 June 2014 continued Note 2014

$000

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current assets (52)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (52)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,711
Cash balance transferred in from Department of Regional Development 7,178
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 26 13,889

As this is the first reporting period for the Department of Lands, which was established and designated effective from  
1 July 2013, there are no comparative figures to disclose.
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations 2014 2014

and Income Estimates For the year ended 30 June 2014 Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
Delivery of Services
Item 25 Net amount appropriated to deliver services  19,771  27,168  7,397 
Total appropriations provided to deliver services  19,771  27,168  7,397 

Capital    
Item 120 Capital appropriations  -    450  450 
GRAND TOTAL  19,771  27,618  7,847 

Details of Expenses by Service
State Land Administration  30,108  166,218  136,110 
Total Cost of Services  30,108 166,218 136,110 
Less Total income  (5,254)  (6,812)  (1,558)
Net Cost of Services  24,854  159,406  134,552 
Adjustments (i)  -    132,238  132,238 
Total appropriations provided to deliver services  24,854  27,168  2,314 

Capital Expenditure 
Purchase of non-current physical assets  14  52  38 
Capital appropriations  14  52  38 

Details of Income Estimates
Income disclosed as Administered Income  53,153  43,359  (9,794)

 53,153  43,359  (9,794)

(i) Adjustments comprise Royalties for Regions funding, Resources Received Free of Charge, Grants received from other State government agencies, 
movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, superannuation and impairment losses.

Note 30 'Explanatory statement' provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards
General
The department’s financial statements for 
the year ended 30 June 2014 have been 
prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards.  The term ‘Australian 
Accounting Standards’ includes Standards 
and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

The department has adopted any applicable 
new and revised Australian Accounting 
Standards from their operative dates.

Early adoption of standards
The department cannot early adopt an 
Australian Accounting Standard unless 
specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application 
of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 
Pronouncements.  There has been no early 
adoption of Australian Accounting Standards 
that have been issued or amended (but not 
operative) by the department for the annual 
reporting period ended 30 June 2014.

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting 
policies

(a)  General statement
The department is a not for-profit reporting 
entity that prepares general purpose financial 
statements in accordance with Australian 

Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other 
authoritative pronouncements of the AASB 
as applied by the Treasurer’s instructions.  
Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s 
instructions to vary application, disclosure, 
format and wording.

The Financial Management Act 2006 
and the Treasurer’s instructions impose 
legislative provisions that govern the 
preparation of financial statements and take 
precedence over Australian Accounting 
Standards, the Framework, Statements of 
Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the AASB.

Where modification is required and has had a 
material or significant financial effect upon the 
reported results, details of that modification and 
the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements.

(b)  Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared 
on the accrual basis of accounting using the 
historical cost convention, except for land, 
buildings and infrastructure which have been 
measured at fair value.

The accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of the financial statements have 

been consistently applied throughout all periods 
presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in 
Australian dollars and all values are rounded to 
the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management 
in applying accounting policies’ discloses 
judgements that have been made in the 
process of applying the department’s 
accounting policies resulting in the most 
significant effect on amounts recognised in the 
financial statements.

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ 
discloses key assumptions made concerning 
the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, 
that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year.

(c)  Reporting entity
The reporting entity comprises the department 
and bodies included at note 34 “Related bodies”

Mission
The department’s mission is to provide 
responsible management of the State’s Crown 
land and pastoral estates to better benefit all 
Western Australians.
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The department is predominantly funded by 
Parliamentary appropriations.The financial 
statements encompass all funds through which 
the department controls resources to carry on 
its functions.

Services
The department provides the following service:

Service 1: State Land Administration

State Land administers and manages Crown 
land to support the needs of the community of 
Western Australia and to deliver primary land 
tenure for strategic infrastructure projects.

The department administers assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses on behalf of Government 
which are not controlled by, nor integral, 
to the function of the department.  These 
administered balances and transactions 
are not recognised in the principal financial 
statements of the department but schedules 
are prepared using the same basis as the 
financial statements and are presented at 
note 38 ‘Disclosure of administered expenses 
and income’ and note 39 ‘Administered assets 
and liabilities’.

As there is only one service provided by the 
department, the Schedule of Income and 
Expenditure by Service and Schedule of 
Assets and Liabilities by service have not been 
prepared.

(d)  Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by 
Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector 
Entities requires transfers in the nature of 
equity contributions, other than as a result of 
a restructure of administrative arrangements, 
to be designated by the Government (the 
owner) as contributions by owners (at the time 
of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers 
can be recognised as equity contributions.  
Capital appropriations have been designated 
as contributions by owners by TI 955 
Contributions by Owners made to Wholly 
Owned Public Sector Entities and have been 
credited directly to Contributed equity.  

The transfer of net assets to/from other 
agencies, other than as a result of a restructure 
of administrative arrangements, are designated 
as contributions by owners where the transfers 
are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.

(e)  Income

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair 
value of consideration received or receivable.  
Revenue is recognised for the major business 
activities as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised from the sale of 
goods and disposal of other assets when the 

significant risks and rewards of ownership 
transfer to the purchaser and can be measured 
reliably.

Provision of services

Revenue is recognised by reference to the 
stage of completion of the transaction.

Service appropriations

Service Appropriations are recognised as 
revenues at fair value in the period in which the 
department gains control of the appropriated 
funds.  The department gains control of 
appropriated funds at the time those funds are 
deposited to the bank account or credited to 
the ‘Amounts receivable for services’ (holding 
account) held at Treasury.  

Net Appropriation Determination

The Treasurer may make a determination 
providing for prescribed receipts to be 
retained for services under the control of 
the department.  In accordance with the 
determination specified in the 2013-2014 
Budget Statements, the department retained 
$6.812 million in 2014 from the following:

• proceeds from fees and charges;
• sale of goods;
• proceeds from Pastoral Leases and 

Rental Properties;
• other departmental revenue.
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Grants, donations, gifts and other  
non-reciprocal contributions 

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the 
department obtains control over the assets 
comprising the contributions, usually when 
cash is received.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are 
not contributions by owners are recognised 
at their fair value.  Contributions of services 
are only recognised when a fair value can be 
reliably determined and the services would be 
purchased if not donated.

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as 
revenue at fair value in the period in which the 
department obtains control over the funds. 
The department obtains control of the funds 
at the time the funds are deposited into the 
department’s bank account.  

Gains
Realised or unrealised gains are usually 
recognised on a net basis.  These include gains 
arising on the disposal of non-current assets 
and some revaluations of non-current assets.

(f) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

(g)  Property, plant and equipment and 
infrastructure

Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment and 
infrastructure costing $5,000 or more are 
recognised as assets and the cost of utilising 
assets is expensed (depreciated) over their 
useful lives.  Items of property, plant and 
equipment and infrastructure costing less than 
$5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (other 
than where they form part of a group of similar 
items which are significant in total).

Initial recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment and 
infrastructure are initially recognised at cost.  

For items of property, plant and equipment and 
infrastructure acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of 
acquisition.

Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition as an 
asset, the revaluation model is used for 
the measurement of land, buildings and 
infrastructure and historical cost for all other 
property, plant and equipment.  Land, buildings 
and infrastructure are carried at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation (buildings 
and infrastructure only) and accumulated 

impairment losses.  All other items of property, 
plant and equipment are stated at historical 
cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

Where market-based evidence is available, the 
fair value of land and buildings is determined 
on the basis of current market buying values 
determined by reference to recent market 
transactions.  When buildings are revalued by 
reference to recent market transactions, the 
accumulated depreciation is eliminated against 
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the 
net amount restated to the revalued amount.

In the absence of market-based evidence, 
fair value of land and buildings is determined 
on the basis of existing use.  This normally 
applies where buildings are specialised or 
where land use is restricted.  Fair value for 
existing use assets is determined by reference 
to the cost of replacing the remaining future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset, ie. 
the depreciated replacement cost.  Where 
the fair value of buildings is determined on 
the depreciated replacement cost basis, the 
gross carrying amount and the accumulated 
depreciation are restated proportionately. 

Fair value of restricted use land is determined 
by comparison with market evidence for land 
with a similar approximate utility (high restricted 
use land) or market value of comparable 
unrestricted land (low restrict use land).
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Land and buildings are independently valued 
annually by the Western Australian Land 
Information Authority (Valuation Services) and 
recognised annually to ensure that the carrying 
amount does not differ materially from the asset’s 
fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of infrastructure has been determined 
by reference to the depreciated replacement 
cost (existing use basis) as the assets are 
specialised and no market-based evidence of 
value is available.  Land under infrastructure 
is included in land reported under note 19 
‘Property, plant and equipment’.  Independent 
valuations are obtained every 3 to 5 years for 
infrastructure.

When infrastructure is revalued, the 
accumulated depreciation is restated 
proportionately with the change in the gross 
carrying amount of the asset so that the 
carrying amount of the asset after revaluation 
equals its revalued amount.

The most significant assumptions in estimating 
fair value are made in assessing whether to 
apply the existing use basis to assets and in 
determining estimated useful life.  Professional 
judgement by the valuer is required where the 
evidence does not provide a clear distinction 
between market type assets and existing use 
assets.

Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment and 
infrastructure, any revaluation surplus relating 
to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation 
surplus.

Asset revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record 
increments and decrements on the revaluation 
of non-current assets as described in note 19 
‘Property, plant and equipment’.

Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful 
life are systematically depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the 
consumption of their future economic benefits.  

Depreciation is calculated using the straight 
line method, using rates which are reviewed 
annually.  Estimated useful lives for each class 
of depreciable asset are:

Buildings 40 years
Office equipment 5 years 
Furniture and Fixtures  5 years

Land is not depreciated.

(h)  Impairment of assets
Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure 
and intangible assets are tested for any 
indication of impairment at the end of each 

reporting period. Where there is an indication 
of impairment, the recoverable amount is 
estimated. Where the recoverable amount is 
less than the carrying amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down to 
the recoverable amount and an impairment 
loss is recognised. Where an asset measured 
at cost is written down to recoverable amount, 
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or 
loss. Where a previously revalued asset is 
written down to recoverable amount, the loss is 
recognised as a revaluation decrement in other 
comprehensive income. As the department is 
a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been 
identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to 
circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is 
materially understated, where the replacement 
cost is falling or where there is a significant 
change in useful life. Each relevant class 
of assets is reviewed annually to verify that 
the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration 
of the asset’s future economic benefits and 
to evaluate any impairment risk from falling 
replacement costs.

The department recognises the acquisition of 
easements associated with the Dampier to 
Bunbury Natual Gas Pipeline as intangible assets 
at cost. These assets are subject to impairment 
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based on the active operation of the pipeline.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life 
and intangible assets not yet available for use 
are tested for impairment at the end of each 
reporting period irrespective of whether there is 
any indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as 
surplus assets is the higher of fair value less 
costs to sell and the present value of future 
cash flows expected to be derived from the 
asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have 
no risk of material impairment where fair value 
is determined by reference to market-based 
evidence.  Where fair value is determined by 
reference to depreciated replacement cost, 
surplus assets are at risk of impairment and 
the recoverable amount is measured.  Surplus 
assets at cost are tested for indications of 
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(i)  Non-current assets (or disposal groups) 
classified as held for sale
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held 
for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying 
amount or fair value less costs to sell, and 
are disclosed separately from other assets in 
the Statement of Financial Position.  Assets 
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or 
amortised.

All Crown land holdings are vested in 
the department by the Government. The 

Department of Lands (DoL) is the only agency 
with the power to sell Crown land.  The 
department transfers the Crown land and 
any attached buildings to DoL when the land 
becomes available for sale.

(j)  Leases
Finance lease rights and obligations are initially 
recognised, at the commencement of the 
lease term, as assets and liabilities equal in 
amount to the fair value of the leased item 
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 
lease payments, determined at the inception of 
the lease.  The assets are disclosed as plant, 
equipment and vehicles under lease, and are 
depreciated over the period during which the 
department is expected to benefit from their 
use.  Minimum lease payments are apportioned 
between the finance charge and the reduction 
of the outstanding lease liability, according to 
the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Operating leases are expensed on a straight 
line basis over the lease term as this represents 
the pattern of benefits derived from the leased 
properties.

(k)  Financial instruments
In addition to cash, the department has two 
categories of financial instrument:

• Loans and receivables; and
• Financial liabilities measured at 

amortised cost.

Financial instruments have been disaggregated 
into the following classes:

• Financial Assets
• Cash and cash equivalents
•  Restricted cash and cash 

equivalents
• Receivables
• Amounts receivable for services

• Financial Liabilities
• Payables

Initial recognition and measurement of 
financial instruments is at fair value which 
normally equates to the transaction cost or 
the face value.  Subsequent measurement is 
at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and 
payables is the transaction cost or the face value 
because there is no interest rate applicable and 
subsequent measurement is not required as the 
effect of discounting is not material.

(l)  Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash 
Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted 
cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise 
cash on hand and short-term deposits with 
original maturities of three months or less that 
are readily convertible to a known amount of 
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk 
of changes in value.



DEPARTMENT OF LANDS ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

PAGE 43

Disclosure and Legal Compliance continued

(m)  Accrued salaries
Accrued salaries (see note 22 ‘Payables’) 
represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at 
the end of the financial year.  Accrued salaries 
are settled within a fortnight of the financial year 
end.  The department considers the carrying 
amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to 
its fair value.

The accrued salaries suspense account 
(See note 15 ‘Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents’) consists of amounts paid annually 
into a suspense account over a period of 10 
financial years to largely meet the additional 
cash outflow in each eleventh year when 27 
pay days occur instead of the normal 26.  No 
interest is received on this account.  

(n)  Amounts receivable for services (holding 
account)
The department receives funding on an accrual 
basis.  The appropriations are paid partly in 
cash and partly as an asset (holding account 
receivable).  The accrued amount receivable 
is accessible on the emergence of the cash 
funding requirement to cover leave entitlements 
and asset replacement.

(o)  Receivables
Receivables are recognised at original invoice 
amount less an allowance for any uncollectible 
amounts (i.e. impairment).  The collectability of 
receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis 

and any receivables identified as uncollectible 
are written-off against the allowance account.  
The allowance for uncollectible amounts 
(doubtful debts) is raised when there is 
objective evidence that the department will 
not be able to collect the debts.  The carrying 
amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for 
settlement within 30 days.  

(p)  Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts 
payable when the department becomes 
obliged to make future payments as a result of 
a purchase of assets or services at fair value, as 
they are generally settled within 30 days.  

(q)  Borrowings
All loans payable are initially recognised at 
fair value, being the net proceeds received.  
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.

(r) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or 
amount and are recognised where there is a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event and when the outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits is 
probable and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation.  Provisions are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period.  

Provisions - employee benefits 
All annual leave and long service leave 
provisions are in respect of employees’ services 
up to the end of the reporting period.

Annual leave

Annual leave is not expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the reporting 
period and is therefore considered to be ‘other 
long-term employee benefits’.  The annual 
leave liability is recognised and measured at 
the present value of amounts expected to be 
paid when the liabilities are settled using the 
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time 
of settlement.  

When assessing expected future payments 
consideration is given to expected future 
wage and salary levels including non-salary 
components such as employer superannuation 
contributions, as well as the experience of 
employee departures and periods of service.  
The expected future payments are discounted 
using market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on national government bonds with 
terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The provision for annual leave is classified 
as a current liability as the department does 
not have an unconditional right to the defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 
after the reporting period.
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Long service leave

The liability for long service leave expected to 
be settled within 12 months after the reporting 
period is recognised and measured at the 
undiscounted amounts expected to be paid 
when the liability is settled.  

Long service leave not expected to be settled 
within 12 months after the reporting period is 
recognised and measured at the present value 
of amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate 
expected to apply at the time of settlement.  

When assessing expected future payments 
consideration is given to expected future 
wage and salary levels including non-salary 
components such as employer superannuation 
contributions, as well as the experience of 
employee departures and periods of service.  
The expected future payments are discounted 
using market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on national government bonds with 
terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Unconditional long service leave provisions are 
classified as current liabilities as the department 
does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 
after the reporting period.  Pre-conditional and 
conditional long service leave provisions are 
classified as non-current liabilities because the 
department has an unconditional right to defer 

the settlement of the liability until the employee 
has completed the requisite years of service.

Sick leave

Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when it 
is probable that sick leave paid in the future will 
be greater than the entitlement that will accrue 
in the future.

Past history indicates that on average, sick 
leave taken each reporting period is less than 
the entitlement accrued. This is expected to 
continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is 
unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements 
will be used by employees and no liability for 
unused sick leave entitlements is recognised. 
As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income for this leave as it is taken.

Purchased leave

The provision for purchased leave relates to 
Public Service employees who have entered 
into an agreement to self-fund up to an 
additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year. 
The provision recognises the value of salary set 
aside for employees and is measured at the 
undiscounted amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. 

Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation 
Board (GESB) and other funds providers 
administer public sector superannuation 

arrangements in Western Australia in 
accordance with legislative requirements.  
Eligibility criteria for membership in particular 
schemes for public sector employees 
varies according to commencement and 
implementation dates.

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension 
Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme 
closed to new members since 1987, or the 
Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a 
defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to 
new members since 1995.

Employees commencing employment prior 
to 16 April 2007 who were not members of 
either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became 
non contributory members of the West State 
Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  Employees 
commencing employment on or after 16 April 
2007 became members of the GESB Super 
Scheme (GESBS).  From 30 March 2012, 
existing members of the WSS or GESBS 
and new employees became able to choose 
their preferred superannuation fund.  The 
department makes concurrent contributions to 
GESB or other funds on behalf of employees 
in compliance with the Commonwealth 
Government’s Superannuation Guarantee 
(Administration) Act 1992. Contributions 
to these accumulation schemes extinguish 
the department’s liability for superannuation 
charges in respect of employees who are not 
members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.
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The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for 
the purposes of employees and whole-
of-government reporting.  However, it is a 
defined contribution plan for agency purposes 
because the concurrent contributions (defined 
contributions) made by the department to 
GESB extinguishes the agency’s obligations to 
the related superannuation liability.

The department has no liabilities under the 
Pension Scheme or the GSS.  The liabilities 
for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the 
unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to 
members who transferred from the Pension 
Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All 
other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent 
contributions made by the department to the 
GESB.  

The GESB makes all benefit payments in 
respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, 
and is recouped from the Treasurer for the 
employer’s share.

Provisions – other
Employment on-costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ 
compensation insurance, are not employee 
benefits and are recognised separately as 
liabilities and expenses when the employment 
to which they relate has occurred.  Employment 
on-costs are included as part of ‘Other 

expenses’ and are not included as part of the 
department’s ‘Employee benefits expense’.  
The related liability is included in ‘Employment 
on-costs provision’.  

(s)  Superannuation expense
The superannuation expense in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income comprises of 
employer contributions paid to the GSS 
(concurrent contributions), the WSS, the 
GESBS, or other superannuation fund.  The 
employer contribution paid to the GESB in 
respect of the GSS is paid back into the 
Consolidated Account by the GESB.

(t)  Assets and services received free of 
charge or for nominal cost
Assets or services received free of charge or 
for nominal cost are recognised as income at 
the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value 
of those services that the department would 
otherwise pay for. A corresponding expense 
is recognised for services received. Receipts 
of assets are recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position.

Assets or services received from other State 
Government agencies are separately disclosed 
under Income from State Government in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(u)  Jointly controlled operations
The department has interests in joint ventures 
that are jointly controlled operations.  A joint 
venture is a contractual arrangement whereby 
two or more parties undertake an economic 
activity that is subject to joint control. A jointly 
controlled operation involves the use of assets 
and other resources of the venturers rather 
than the establishment of a separate entity.  
The department recognises its interests in the 
jointly controlled operations by recognising the 
assets it controls and the liabilities that it incurs 
in respect of the joint venture. The department 
also recognises the expenses that it incurs 
and its share of the income that it earns from 
the sale of goods or services by the jointly 
controlled operations.

(v)  Comparative figures
As this is the first reporting period for the 
Department of Lands, which was established 
and designated effective from 1 July 2013, 
there are no comparative figures to disclose.
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Note 3. Judgements made by management 
in applying accounting  policies
The preparation of financial statements requires 
management to make judgements about the 
application of accounting policies that have a 
significant effect on the amounts recognised 
in the financial statements. The department 
evaluates these judgements regularly.

Operating lease commitments
The department has entered into a number 
of leases for buildings for branch office 
accommodation.  Some of these leases 
relate to buildings of a temporary nature and 
it has been determined that the lessor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership. Accordingly, these leases have 
been classified as operating leases.

Note 4.  Key sources of estimation 
uncertainty
Key estimates and assumptions concerning the 
future are based on historical experience and 
various other factors that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year.

Long Service Leave
Several estimations and assumptions used in 
calculating the department’s long service leave 
provision include expected future salary rates, 
discount rates, employee retention rates and 
expected future payments. Changes in these 
estimations and assumptions may impact on 
the carrying amount of the long service leave 
provision.
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The department has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after  
1 July 2013 that impacted on the department.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement
This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires additional disclosures for assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value. There is no financial impact.

AASB 119 Employee Benefits
This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes to the recognition, presentation and disclosure requirements.

The department assessed employee leave patterns to determine whether annual leave is a short-term or other long-term employee 
benefit. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material

AASB 1048 Interpretation of Standards
This Standard supersedes AASB 1048 (June 2012), enabling references to the interpretation in all other Standards to be updated by 
reissuing the service Standard. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 
116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 
131 & 132]
This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the 
result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)[AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 
and Int 14]
This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 119 in 
September 2011. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not 
material.

AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132]
This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include information that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements 
to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised 
financial assets and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. There is no financial impact.
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AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134  
and Int 2]
This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a consequence of the annual 
improvements process. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 
2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8]
This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January 2015 (instead of 1 January 2013). 
Further amendments are also made to numerous consequential amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 
2015. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-9 Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from the Withdrawal of Australian Int 1039 
The withdrawal of Int 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax Bills in Australia has no financial impact for the department during the 
reporting period and at balance date. Measurement of tax assets and liabilities continues to be measured in accordance with enacted or 
substantively enacted tax law pursuant to AASB 112.46-47.

AASB 2012-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 
102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 1049 & 2011-7 and Int 12]
The Standard introduces a number of editorial alterations and amends the mandatory application date of Standards for not for profit 
entities accounting for interests in other entities. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments.
Part A of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from revisions to the Australian Accounting Conceptual 
Framework for periods ending on or after 20 December 2013. Other Parts of this Standard become operative in later periods. There is 
no financial impact for Part A of the Standard.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian 
Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements.  Consequently, the department has not applied early any of the following Australian 
Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the department.  Where applicable, the department plans to apply these 
Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.



DEPARTMENT OF LANDS ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

PAGE 49

Disclosure and Legal Compliance continued

Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates continued Operative for  
reporting periods 
beginning on/after

Int 21 Levies 1 Jan 2014
This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government levy imposed should be 
recognised. There is no financial impact for the department at reporting date.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 1 Jan 2018
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a 
number of changes to accounting treatments. 
The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards. The department has not yet determined the application of the 
potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 Jan 2014
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting Standards - Transtition Guidance and Other Amendments. The adoption of the new 
Standard has no financial impact for the model department as it doesn’t impact accounting for related bodies 
and the department has no interests in other entities.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 1 Jan 2014
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introduces new 
principles for determining the type of joint arrangement that exists, which are more aligned to the actual rights 
and obligations of the parties to the arrangement.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. There is no 
financial impact for the model department as the new standard continues to require the recognition of the 
department’s share of assets and share of liabilities for the unincorporated joint operation.

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 Jan 2014
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. 
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. There is no financial impact.
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates continued Operative for  
reporting periods 
beginning on/after

AASB 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 Jan 2016
The department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 1 Jan 2014
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, 
removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier standard whilst retaining accounting and disclosure 
requirements for the preparation of separate financial statements. Mandatory application was deferred by one 
year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. There is no financial impact.

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 Jan 2014
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number 
of clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed ownership interest.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. The 
adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the model department as it does not hold investments 
in associates and the accounting treatments for joint operations is consistent with current practice.

AASB 1031 Materiality 1 Jan 2014
This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian guidance on materiality that is not 
available in IFRSs and refers to other Australian pronouncements that contain guidance on materiality. There is no 
financial impact.

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 1 Jul 2014
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the financial statements of not-for-profit entities within 
the General Government Sector. The department will be required to disclose additional budgetary information 
and explanations of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact.

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 
118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 & 12]

1 Jan 2015

[modified by AASB 2010-7]
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates continued Operative for  
reporting periods 
beginning on/after

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 
101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12,  
19 & 127]

1 Jan 2015

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date of this 
standard to 1 January 2015. The department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of 
the Standard.

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements 
Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 
9, 16 & 17]

1 Jan 2014

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issue of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 
Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. For not-for-profit 
entities is applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The department has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132] 1 Jan 2014
This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in applying some 
of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” 
and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. There is no financial 
impact.
The department does not routinely hold financial assets and financial liabilities that it intends to settle on a net 
basis, therefore there is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets. 1 Jan 2014
This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no financial impact.
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates continued Operative for  
reporting periods 
beginning on/after

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge 
Accounting [AASB 139]

1 Jan 2014

This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances where a derivative, which has 
been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a 
consequence of laws or regulations. The department does not routinely enter into derivatives or hedges, therefore 
there is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities 
- Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049].

1 Jan 2014

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in determining whether a not-for-profit 
entity controls another entity when financial returns are not key attribute of the investor’s relationship. The 
Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact result from the adoption of the amended 
AASB 10.

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments. 1 Jan 2014 
1 Jan 2017

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of references to AASB 
1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 (Part B), and, defers the application 
of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C). The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 1 January 
2018 by AASB 2014-1. The department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of  
AASB 9, otherwise there is no financial impact for Part B.

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

The department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2014 
1 Jan 2015 
1 Jan 2016 
1 Jan 2018
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2014
$000

Note 6. Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries(a) 14,784
Superannuation - defined contribution plans(b) 1,336

16,120
(a)   Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave entitlements  

including superannuation contribution component.
(b)  Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State, GESB and other eligible funds.

Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers’ compensation insurance, are included at note 11 'Other expenses'.  

Employment on-costs liability is included at note 23 'Provisions'.

Note 7. Supplies and services
Communications 84
Consultants and contractors 11,706
Consumables 148
Travel 201
Other 527

12,666
Note 8. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation
Buildings 33
Computer Hardware 1
Furniture & Fixtures 5
Total depreciation 39
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2014
$000

Note 9. Accommodation expenses
Lease rentals 1,914
Repairs and Maintenance 316
Cleaning -

2,230
Note 10. Grants and subsidies
Recurrent
Crown land - Fire Risk Management (DFES) 450
Other Minor Grants and Subsidies 251

701
Note 11. Other expenses
Doubtful debts expense 1
Employment on-costs(a) 49
Compensation expenses 19
Act of grace payment (b) 75
Other 1,390

1,534
(a)   Includes workers’ compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated with the  

recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 23 ‘Provisions’. Superannuation contributions accrued  
as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.

(b)   During the financial year 2013-2014, $75,000 was paid as an act of grace payment under the authority of the Minister of Lands  
as delegate to the Treasurer.

Note 12. User charges and fees
Services Rendered 581
Rents and leases 5,531

6,112
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2014
$000

Note 13. Other revenue
Contaminated Sites Management 511
Salary recoup 120
Other revenue 69

700
Note 14. Income from State Government
Appropriation received during the period:
Service appropriation (a) 27,168

27,168
Services received free of charge from other State Government Agencies during the period (b) 

Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies:
Landgate 4,699
Department of Finance 258
State Solicitor's Office 273

5,230
Royalties for Regions Fund:
Regional Community Services Account (c) 30

30

32,428
(a)   Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered.  Appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and  

a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding account) comprises the budgeted depreciation expense for the year and  
any agreed increase in leave liabilities during the year.
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2014
$000

(b)   Discretionary transfers of assets (including grants) and liabilities between State Government agencies are reported under  
Income from State Government. Transfers of assets and liabilities in relation to a restructure of administrative arrangements are 
recognised as distribution to owners by the transferor and contribution by owners by the transferee under AASB 1004 in  
respect of net assets transferred. Other non-discretionary non-reciprocal transfers of assets and liabilities designated as  
contributions by owners under TI 955 are also recognised directly to equity.

(c)   This is a sub-fund within the over-arching 'Royalites for Regions Fund'.  The recurrent funds are committed to projects and  
programs in WA regional areas.

Note 15. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Current
Royalities for Regions Fund (a) 30
Cash and cash equivalents 5,374

5,404
Non-current
Accrued salaries suspense account (b) 484

484
(a) Unspent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas.
(b) Funds held in the suspense account used only for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a financial year that occurs every 11 years.
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2014
$000

Note 16. Receivables
Current
Receivables 1,842
Allowances for impairment of receivables (704)
GST Receivable 259
Other debtors 6
Total current 1,403

Total receivables 1,403

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:
Balance at start of period -
Balance transferred in 711
Doubtful debts expense -
Amounts written off during the period (7)
Amount recovered during the period -
Balance at end of period 704

The department does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables.

Note 17. Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account)
Current -
Non-current 1,449

1,449
Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations.  It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement  
or payment of leave liability.
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2014
$000

Note 18. Other current assets
Prepayments 211
Total other current assets 211

Note 19. Property, plant and equipment
Land
At fair value (a) 248,714
Accumulated impairment losses (Note 21) (132,850)

115,864
Buildings
At fair value (a) 1,303
Accumulated depreciation -
Accumulated impairment losses (Note 21) (78)

1,225
Computer hardware 
At cost 5
Accumulated depreciation (5)

-
Fixtures and furniture
At cost 288
Accumulated depreciation (238)

50
Infrastructure
At cost 45,127

45,127
162,266
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2014
$000

Note 19. Property, plant and equipment continued
(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2013 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).   
The valuations were performed during the year ended 30 June 2014 and recognised at 30 June 2014.  In undertaking the revaluation,  
fair value was determined by reference to market values for land: $104,044,850 and buildings: nil. For the remaining balance,  
fair value of land and buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost.

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out  
in the table below.

Land
Buildings - at 

fair value
Computer 
Hardware

Fixtures & 
Furniture Infrastructure Total

2014 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Distribution from owner (Note 25 (a)) 248,714 1,336 1 4 - 250,055
Additions - - - 51 - 51
Transfers (Note 25 (b)) - - - - 45,127 45,127
Other disposals - - - - - -
Depreciation - (33) (1) (5) - (39)
Revaluation increments/(decrements) - - - - - -
Impairment losses (Note 21) (132,850) (78) - - - (132,928)
Carrying amount at end of period 115,864 1,225 - 50 45,127 162,266
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Note 20. Fair value measurements
Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Lands (Note 19) - 104,044 11,820 115,864
Buildings (Note 19) - - 1,225 1,225

- 104,044 13,045 117,089

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 or 3 during the period.

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values

Level 2 fair values of Non-current assets held for sale, Land and Buildings (Office Accommodation) are derived using the market approach. Market 
evidence sales prices of comparable land and buildings (office accommodation) in close proximity is used to determine price per square metre.
Non-current assets held for sale have been written down to fair value less costs to sell. Fair value has been determined by reference to market evidence of 
sales prices of comparable assets.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
Land Buildings

2014 $000 $000
Fair value at start of period  16,458  1,336 
Additions  -    -   
Revaluations increments/(decrements) recognised in Profit or Loss  -    -   
Revaluations increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  (4,638)  (78)
Transfers (From/(to) Level 2)  -    -   
Disposals  -    -   
Depreciation Expense  -    (33)
Fair Value at end of period  11,820  1,225 
Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss, under 'Other Gains'  -    -   
Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets  
held at the end of the reporting period

 -    -   
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Note 20. Fair value measurements continued
Valuation processes

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.

Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. Transfers are 
generally limited to assets newly classified as non-current asets held for sale as Treasurer's instructions require valuations of land, buildings and 
infrastructure to be categorised within Level 3 where the valuations will utilise significant Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis.

Fair value for existing use specialised buildings and infrastructure assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less 
accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired economic benefit, or obsolescence, and 
optimisation (where applicable) of the asset. Current replacement cost is generally determined by reference to the market observable replacement cost of 
a substitute asset of comparable utility and the gross project size specifications.

Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of comparable land that is unrestricted less restoration 
costs to return the site to a vacant and marketable condition (low restricted use land), or, comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility 
(high restricted use land).

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the department are derived and evaluated as follows:

Historical cost per square metre floor area (m2)

The cost of constructing specialist buildings with similar utility are extracted from financial records of the department, then indexed by movements in CPI.

Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset

These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).

Selection of land with restricted utility

Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility. Relevant comparators of land with low 
level utility are selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).

Historical cost per cubic metre (m3)

The cost of construction of infrastructure are extrated from financial records of the department and indexed by movements in construction costs by 
quantity surveyors.
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Note 20. Fair value measurements continued
Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements

Description and fair value 
as at 30 June 2014

$000
Valuation  

technique(s) Unobservable inputs

Range of  
unobservable inputs 
(Weighted average)

Relationship of unobservable 
inputs to fair value

Land
($11,820)

Market approach
Selection of land with similar 
approximate utility

$0.01 - $591 per m2 Higher value of similar land 
increases estimated fair value

Buildings
($1,225)

Depreciated Replacement 
cost

Consumed economic 
benefit/obsolescence of 
asset

0%
Greater consumption of 
economic benefit or increased 
obsolescence lowers fair value.

Historical cost per square 
metre floor area (m2)

$28 - $100 per m2 Higher historical cost per m2 
increases fair value.

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Note 19.

Basis of Valuation

In the absence of market-based evidence due to the specialised nature of some non-financial assets, these assets are valued at Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy on an existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have been placed on their use and disposal when 
they are not determined to be surplus to requirements. These restrictions are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific community 
service.
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2014

$000
Note 21. Impairment of assets
Under the Land Administration Act 1997, a review of the Pastoral Land Estate is conducted every five years. In 2013-14, the Valuer 
General has undertaken a review that has resulted in a decline in the value of the Pastoral Land Estate. The decline in value is related  
to the effects of the Global Financial Crisis and the temporary ceasing of the live cattle export trade. Due to the creation of the Department  
of Lands on 1 July 2013, it has no asset revaluation reserves as it is now as per TI 955, part of contributed equity from the State.  
See Note 19 for further details.

The department held intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period.  The department recognises the acquisition 
of easements associated with the Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline as intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the 
reporting period.  At the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.

All surplus assets at 30 June 2014 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written-off.

Note 22. Payables
Current
Accrued expenses 301
Accrued salaries 677
Total current 978

See note 31 'Financial instruments'

Note 23. Provisions
Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave(a) 1,241
Long service leave(b) 1,561
Purchased leave (c) 4

2,806
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2014

$000
Note 23. Provisions continued
Other provisions
Employment on-costs(d) 21

21
2,827

Non-current 
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave(b) 617
Purchased leave 5

622
Other provisions
Employment on-costs(d) 5

627
3,454

(a)  Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months  
after the end of the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 857
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 384

1,241
(b)  Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 

12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to  
occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 533
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 1,644

2,177
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2014

$000
(c)  Purchase leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least  

12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Actual settlement of liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 4
More than 12 months of the end of the reporting period 5

9
(d)  The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including workers' 

compensation insurance.  The provision is the present value of expected future payments.  

The associated expense, apart from unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 11 ‘Other expenses’.

Movements in other provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the period, other than employee benefits, are set out below. 

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period -
Additional/(reversals of) provisions recognised 26
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits -
Carrying amount at end of period 26

Note 24. Other liabilities
Current
Unearned revenue 65
Paid parental leave 6

71
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2014

$000
Note 25. Equity
The Government holds the equity interest in the department on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net 
assets of the department. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

Contributed equity
Balance at start of period -

Contributions by owners
Capital Appropriation 450

Distribution from owners:

Transfer of net assets from other agencies: -
Department of Regional Development (a) 256,116
Main Roads WA (b) 45,127
Total contributions by owners 301,693

Balance at end of period 301,693

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of period -
Result for the period (126,978)
Balance at end of period (126,978)

Total Equity at end of period 174,715

(a) As at 1st of July 2013, the Department of Lands was established as part of the machinery of government charges, the following assets 
and liabilities were transferred from the Department of Regional Development.
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Note 25. Equity continued
Transfer of net assets from: Regional Development

$000

Cash and cash equivalents 7,178
Lands & buildings 250,055
Other Assets 2,694
Total Assets 259,927

Liabilities 442
Provisions 3,369
Total Liabilities and provisions 3,811
Total Contribution by owners 256,116

(b) Flood mitigation levees constructed by Main Roads WA through funds allocated from Carnarvon Flood Mitigation Project (Joint Commonwealth and 
Royalties for Regions Funds) was transferred at cost during the year.
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2014
$000

Note 26. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the  
Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 8,001
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 15 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents') 5,888

13,889
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities

Net cost of services (159,406)

Non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 8 'Depreciation and amortisation expense') 39
Doubtful debts expense (note 11 'Other expenses') (8)
Services received free of charge (note 14 'Income from State Government') 5,231
Impairment Loss on fixed assets 132,928

(Increase)/decrease in assets
Current receivables (503)
Other current assets (211)
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2014
$000

Note 26. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows continued
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Current payables(a) 584
Current provisions 130
Other current liabilities 22
Non-current provisions (45)
Change in GST in receivables/payables(c) 354
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (20,885)

(a)  Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/
purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items. 

(b)  This is the net GST paid/received, i.e cash transactions. 
(c)  This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables. 

Note 27. Commitments
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:
Within 1 year 1,255
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4,668
Later than 5 years 4,405

10,328
The department has entered into a property lease which is a non-cancellable lease with a five year term, with rent payable monthly in 
advance.  Contingent rent provisions within the lease agreement require that the minimum lease payments shall increase by the lower of 
CPI or 4% per annum.  An option exists to renew the lease at the end of the five year term for an additional term of five years.
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2014
$000

Note 27. Commitments continued
The commitments below are inclusive of GST.

Other expenditure commitments
Other expenditure commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities, are payable as follows:
Within 1 year 4,713
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 24
Later than 5 years -

4,737
Note 28. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liabilities

The following contingent liabilities are additional to the liabilities included in the financial statements:

Litigation in progress

The Department of Lands (DoL) has pending litigation that may affect its financial position:
MCC Australian Sanjin Mining Pty Ltd v Min for Lands & Robe River Mining Co Pty Ltd & Ors - writ of certiorari to quash variation of Robe River lease 
under Iron Ore (Robe River) Agreement Act 1964. Cost cannot be estimated at this time.
Minister for Lands is party to James Point litigation. Minister for Transport is also a party and Department of Transport is lead agency. Cost cannot be 
estimated at this time.

Native title claims

Crown land, administered by DoL, is subject to native title. There is a potentially large, but as yet unquantified compensation liability for the State, relating 
to land transactions that constitute "future acts" under the Native Title Act 1993 (Commonwealth) (NTA), and have extinguished or affected native title 
rights and interests over specified parcels of land. Claims for compensation have not yet been made by the native title parties and there is no guidance 
from the Courts as to how they might be valued, if and when they are lodged.
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Note 28. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets continued
The Department of the Premier and Cabinet has recently commenced dialogue with the Value General’s Office, regarding a suitable formula that could be 
consistently applied to estimate liability, should any claims for compensation be successful. The extent of DoL's native title compensation liability cannot 
be estimated at this time.

Other contingent liabilities arising from native title related matters, include:
Kariyarra Letter Agreement, Port and South Hedland- State has not passed on cost of 5% of developed lots value to developer but benefit may be 
payable by the State to the native title party in any event- amount slill being quantified and cannot be estimated at this time.

Newman Letter Agreement- land transferred in error to wrong party. Liability of State to native title party to whom it should have been transferred, for 
breach of contract. Cost cannot be estimated at this time.

Glenayle agreement- as no Indigenous Land Use Agreement is likely before September, State will likely have liability for additional $75,000 under 
agreement.

Contaminated sites

Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 (GSA) the department is required to report known and suspected contaminated sites to the Department of 
Environmental Regulation (DER). In accordance with the GSA, DER classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the environment and 
environment values. Where sites are classified as “contaminated- remediation required” or “possibly contaminated -investigation required”, the Department 
of Lands may have a liability in respect of investigalion or remediation expenses.

DER has approved a program under section 12 of the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 for the systematic identification, inspection, reporting and treatment 
of suspected contaminated sites on Crown land under direct Department of Lands management. DER has approved a $300,000 program contribution for 
the ongoing remediation of Wittenoom townsite in 2013/14.

Cabinet has approved $1.3m funding for Phase 1 of the investigation of lead tailings in the Northampton townsite. Initial inspection of approximately 
10,000 suspected contaminated sites will be conducted by field officers, prior to the DoL determining whether the inspection reports indicate that a site 
merits further investigation and reporting to DER. Subsequent detailed examinalion and reporting to DER will be conducted by duly qualified environmental 
consultants and contaminated sites auditors, contracted by DoL. The extent of DoL’s liability can only be assessed as DER progressively classifies sites 
under a program, which is expected to continue for a number of years.
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Note 28. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets continued
Other claims for compensation

Claim for compensation under the Land Administration Act 1997 by Forrest & Forrest for taking part of Minderoo pastoral lease- $800 000 claimed, 
$10 000 offered.

Claim for compensation by Amonini & Turner in respect of damage to grape vines (would be payable from Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline 
trust a/c)- claims in the alternalive of $805K and $160K, but offer likely to be very considerably lower.

Note 29. Events occuring after the end of the reporting period
There are no events after the end of the reporting period.
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Note 30. Explanatory statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense as presented in the financial statement titled 'Summary of 
Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates' are shown below: Significant variations are considered to be those greater than  
10% or $250,000.

Total appropriations provided to deliver services

Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2014
2014 2014

Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
Total appropriation provided to deliver services for the period  19,771  27,168 7,397

The increase in appropriations for the 2013-14 financial year reflects the government's decision to fund a 
reform program in Land Administration for the newly created Department of Lands.

Service expenditure

Significant variances between estimate and actual results for 2014
2014 2014

Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
State Land Administration 30,108 166,218 136,110

State Land Administration - The variance is due to the review of the Pastoral Land Estate is conducted every 
five years. In 2013-14, the Valuer General has undertaken a review that has resulted in a decline in the value 
of the Pastoral Land Estate. The decline in value is related to the effects of the Global Financial Crisis and the 
temporary ceasing of the live cattle export trade. Due to the creation of the Department of Lands on  
1 July 2013, it has no asset revaluation reserves as it is now as per TI 955, part of contributed equity from 
the State. See Note 19 and 21 for further details.
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Note 30. Explanatory statement continued
Capital contribution

Significant variances between estimate and actual results for 2014
2014 2014

Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
Capital contribution  -  450 450

The agency has no significant capital expenditure during the 2013-14 financial year.

Administered Income

Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2014
2014 2014

Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
Income disclosed as Administered Income 53,153 43,359 (9,794)

Significant variances between actual results 2014 and 2013

As of the first of July 2013, The Department of Regional Development and Lands was re-designated as the 
Department of Regional Development and the Department of Lands. As this is the first reporting period for 
Department of Lands, there are no comparative figures to disclose.
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Note 31. Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial instruments held by the department are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, receivables and 
payables. The department has limited exposure to financial risks. The department's overall risk management program focuses on 
managing the risks identified below.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the department's receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial 
loss to the department. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the 
gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in the table at note 31 (c) 'Financial instrument 
disclosures' and note 16 'Receivables'.

Credit risk associated with the department's financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amounts receivable for services 
(holding account). For receivables other than government, the department trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The 
department has policies in place to ensure that services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable 
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the department's exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the 
reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. 

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the department is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 
The department is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.

The department has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash 
flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments. 
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Note 31. Financial Instruments continued
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the department's income 
or value of its holdings of financial instruments. The department does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other 
price risks. 

(b) Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are:
2014
$000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,001
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,888
Loans and receivables(a) 2,593

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 978

(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Note 31. Financial Instruments continued

(c)  Financial instrument disclosures

Credit risk

The following table details the department's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The department's maximum exposure 
to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that 
are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets.  The table is based on information provided to senior management of the department.

The department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.

Ageing analysis of financial assets

Past due but not impaired

Carrying 
Amount

Not past 
due and not 

impaired

Up to 1 
month

1 - 3
 months

3 months
to 1 year

1 - 5
Years

More
than 5
Years

Impaired
financial 
assets

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2014
Cash and cash equivalents 8,001 8,001 - - - - - -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,888 5,888 - - - - - -
Receivables (a) 1,144 751 16 1 376 - - -
Amounts receivable for services 1,449 1,449 - - - - - -

16,482 16,089 16 1 376 - - -

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the department's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities.  The 
maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows.  The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.  

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Interest rate exposure Maturity Dates

Weighted
Average
Effective

Interest Rate

Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
interest 

rate

Variable
interest

rate

Non-
Interest 
Bearing

Nominal
Amount

Up to 1
month

1 - 3
months

3 months 
to

1 year

1 - 5 
years

More than
5 years

% $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,001 - - 8,001 8,001 8,001 - - - -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,888 - - 5,888 5,888 5,404 - - 484 -
Receivables (a) 1,144 - - 1,144 1,144 1,144 - - - -
Amounts receivable for services 1,449 - - 1,449 1,449 - - - - 1,449

16,482 - - 16,482 16,482 14,549 - - 484 1,449

Financial Liabilities
Payables 978 - - 978 978 978 - - - -

978 - - 978 978 978 - - - -

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
None of the department's financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are sensitive to movements in interest rates, hence 
movements in the interest rates have no bottom line impact on the department's surplus or equity.
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Note 32. Remuneration of senior officers
The number of senior officers whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the  
financial year fall within the following bands are: 

  2014
              $
140,001 - 150,000 1
150,001 - 160,000 1
160,001 - 170,000 1
180,001 - 190,000 2
200,001 - 210,000 1

$000
Base remuneration and superannuation  963 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals  45 
Other benefits  19 
Total remuneration of senior officers 1,027

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the department in respect of senior officers.

Note 33. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial year is as follows:

2014
$000

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance indicators 53

Note 34. Related bodies
The department had no related bodies during the financial years 2013-14.

Note 35. Affiliated bodies
The department had no affiliated bodies during the financial years 2013-14.
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2014
$000

Note 36. Special purpose accounts
Special Purpose Account
Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline Account (Administered) (a)

The purpose of this account is to hold funds received pursant to section 45(2) of the Dampier to Bunbury Pipeline Act 1997  
for application in accordance with section 45(5) of that Act.
Balance at start of period  25,190 
Receipts  1,768 
Payments  (348)
Balance at the end of period 26,610

Special Purpose Account
Deposits Land Applications (Administered) (b)

This Account holds fees, rentals, deposits, premiums or performance bonds received from applicants pending the issue of licenses or 
leases, or the sale of Crown land or in relation to improvements to Crown land in accordance with provisions of the  
Land Administration Act 1997.
Balance at start of period  26,523 
Receipts  11,127 
Payments  (14,672)
Balance at the end of period 22,978
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2014
$000

Note 36. Special purpose accounts continued

Special Purpose Account
Wittenoom Relocation Trust Account (Controlled) (c) 

The purpose of this account is to hold funds for the purpose of purchasing property in the Wittenoom town site, relocating residents, 
demolition and disposal of acquired property.
Balance at start of period  3,322 
Receipts  350 
Payments  (202)
Balance at the end of period 3,470

(a)  Established under section 16(1)(b) of FMA.
(b)  Established under section 16(1)(c) of FMA.
(c)  Established under section 16(1)(d) of FMA.

Note 37. Supplementary financial information
(a) Write-offs
During the financial year 2014, $7,252.34 was written off the department's asset register under the authority of:

The accountable authority 7
The Minister -

7
(b) Losses through theft, defaults and other causes
There have been no losses of public money and other property through theft or default.

(c) Gifts of public property
There have been no gifts of public property provided by the department.
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Note 38.  Disclosure of administered income and expenses by service

State 
Lands

General 
- Not 

Attributed
Total

2014 2014 2014
$000 $000 $000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 773 - 773
Supplies and services 777 - 777
Accommodation expenses 5 - 5
Transfer payments (a) - 144,513 144,513
Other expenses 58 - 58
Total administered expenses 1,613 144,513 146,126

Income
For transfer:
Regulatory fees and other charges 67 - 67
Land sales (b) - 22,966 22,966
Lease rental - 18,672 18,672
Other revenue - 1,654 1,654
Total administered revenue 67 43,292 43,359

(a) This reflects Crown land lease and sale proceeds that was transferred to the State Government Consolidated Account during the year.
(b) Land sale revenue relates only to land sold on behalf of other agencies as the department is the only agency with the power to sell Crown land.  
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Note 38.  Disclosure of administered income and expenses by service continued
(c) Sale of administered Crown land is reported as a net gain/loss on disposal of fixed assets as outlined 
below:

2014
$000

Proceeds from disposal of land 85,075
Cost of disposal of land (at fair value less cost to sell) (85,075)
Net gain/(loss) -
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Note 39. Administered assets and liabilities
2014
$000

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  53,342 
Receivables  3,832 
Land classified as held for sale (a)  191 
War Service Land Settlement Scheme  1,352 
Total Administered Current Assets  58,717 

Non-Current Assets
Land and buildings at fair value (b)  4,546,343 
Easements at fair value (c)  17,198 
Total Administered Non-Current Assets 4,563,541
Total Administered Assets 4,622,258

Current Liabilities
Payables  1,167 
Provisions  168 
Income in advance  185 
Refundable deposits  24,396 
Funds held in trust  1,868 
Total Administered Current Liabilities 27,784

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions  66 
Total Administered Non-Current Liabilities 66

Total Administered Liabilities 27,850
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Note 39. Administered assets and liabilities continued
(a) Crown land administered by the department and identified for sale within the next 12 months is reported as a non-current asset held 
for sale, details of balance held is outlined below:

2014
$000

Opening balance  230 
Non-current assets classified as held for sale during the year  191 
Less sale of assets previously recognised as held for sale (230)
Closing Balance - Land classified as held for sale  191 

(b)  Notes to the Schedules of Administered Items - Land values
Land is measured at fair value based on independent valuations provided by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services).  The valuations were performed during the year ended 30 June 2014 and recognised at 30 June 2014.  

Fair values has been determined on the basis of current market value where an active market exists or current use where no market 
exists and/or the current land use if specialised in nature.  Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying 
value of land does not differ materially from its fair value at reporting date.

Valuation Services, the Office of the Auditor General and the Department of Treasury assessed the valuations globally to ensure that the 
valuations provided (as at 1 July 2013) were compliant with fair value at 30 June 2014.

(c) Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities in relation to the Administered Crown land is disclosed in Note 28.
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Ministerial Directives
No Ministerial directives were received during 
the financial year.

Staff Profile

2013-14
Full-time permanent 111
Full-time contract 37
Part-time measured on a FTE basis 18
Total 166

As at 30 June 2014, DoL had an approved 
full-time equivalent (FTE) of 185 and an actual 
FTE of 166.

During 2013-14, the department commenced 
operations and therefore there are no 
comparisons to prior years.

Compliance training
During the year, the department ensured that 
staff completed training to ensure it met its 
compliance requirements against applicable 
Acts and Legislation. These included:

 ■ Occupational Safety and Health training 
(management obligations): 21 managers 
attended this training.

 ■ Accountable and Ethical Decision Making 
(AEDM): 17 staff attended this training.

 ■ Recruitment training: 13 staff attended this 
training.

Pricing Policies of Services
Charges for goods and services are rendered 
on a full or partial cost recovery basis. The fees 
and charges are determined in accordance 
with Costing and Pricing Government Services: 
Guidelines for Use by Agencies in the Western 
Australian Public Sector as published by the 
Department of Treasury.

The current list of fees and charges are listed 
in Schedule 1 of the Land Administration 
Regulations 1998. Details are available at  
www.slp.wa.gov.au

http://www.slp.wa.gov.au
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Governance Disclosures

Contracts with Senior officers
No senior officers or firms of which senior 
officers are members or entities in which senior 
officers have substantial interests had any 
interests in existing or proposed contracts 
with DoL other than normal contracts of 
employment of service.

Expenditure on Advertising, 
Market Research

Advertising under the Electoral Act 
1907
In compliance with section 175ZE of the 
Electoral Act 1907, the department is required 
to report on expenditure incurred during the 
financial year in relation to advertising agencies, 
market research organisations, polling 
organisations, direct mail organisations and 
media advertising organisations.

Advertising agencies 2013-14 $000
Market research organisations 0
Polling organisations 0
Direct mail organisations 0
Media advertising organisations
– Adcorp Australia 62
– Other 10
Total expenditure 72

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan
The DoL is committed to the principles of 
access and inclusion for people with disabilities.  
The department is continuing with the Disability 
Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) that was 
developed by the former Department of 
Regional Development and Lands in 2012.  
DoL will develop its own DAIP in the next 12 
months.

DoL has progressed the following activities in 
2013/14:

 ■ Created the DoL website in line with Level A 
of the Web content accessibility guidelines 
version 2.0 Commonwealth Government 
standard

 ■ The colours and graphics of DoL’s corporate 
branding complies with the accessibility 
standard

 ■ Awareness of disability access issues at 
OSH and corporate induction training

 ■ Ensured that all office space is accessible to 
people with disabilities and that fire wardens 
are trained in evacuation procedures for 
people with disabilities

 ■ Ensured that people with disabilities have 
the same opportunities to participate in 
public consultation fora that are held by the 
department.
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Standards and Ethics
DoL is committed to complying with the Public 
Sector Standards and the WA Code of Ethics. 
We expect high standards of professional 
conduct, ethical behaviour and integrity from all 
staff. These standards are articulated in DoL’s 
policies and procedures. Staff are informed 
about Public Sector standards at induction 
courses, training and professional development 
programs and job applicants are notified of 
their rights and obligations under the Grievance 
Resolution Standard and the Employment 
Standard

Recordkeeping Plan
Record keeping services are provided by 
DRD under a bureau service arrangement. 
The record keeping provisions of DoL are also 
covered under DRD’s Recordkeeping Plan. 
The Plan was approved by the State Records 
Commission in April 2014 and it meets the 
requirements of the State Records Act 2000. 

The department is reducing its reliance on 
paper records with the increased use of the 
Electronic Document and Record Management 
System. New information technology systems 
are being introduced over the next three years 
and are expected to have a positive impact 
on records management. DoL is continuing to 
invest in records management training. Over 
75 hours of face to face training has been 
delivered and 61% of staff have attended at 
least one session. 

Occupational Health, Safety and Injury Management 

Assessment of OSH management systems
The Human Resources and OSH Consultant, in consultation with OSH representatives, conducts 
regular audits to assess the effectiveness of OSH management systems. The audits take into 
account several factors to determine the level of associated risks to the organisation’s operations, 
the effectiveness of the existing systems, their capability to achieve established objectives and the 
consequences for the department.

OSH and injury management performance

Actual Results
Measure 2012-13 2013-14 Target
Number of Fatalities 0 0 0
Lost time injury/disease (LTI/D) 
incident rate 2 1 0 or 10% improvement on the 

previous three years

Lost time injury severity rate 0 0 0 or 10% improvement on the 
previous three years reduction

Percentage of injured workers 
returned to work within

Greater than or equal to 80% 
return to work within 26 weeks

(i) 13 weeks 100% 100%
(ii) 26 weeks 100% 100%
Percentage of managers and 
supervisors trained in occupational 
safety, health and injury management 
responsibilities

95% 95% Greater than or equal to 80%

An increased level of compliance by managers and supervisors trained in OSH and injury 
management was identified and ongoing training continues.
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Department of Lands Head office
Location Level 2,  

140 William Street 
Perth WA 6000

Postal Address PO Box 1143 
West Perth WA 6872

Phone/Fax Telephone: (08) 6552 4400 
Facsimile: (08) 6552 4417
Email: info@lands.wa.gov.au

Bunbury
Location Bunbury Tower

61 Victoria Street
Bunbury WA 6230

Postal Address PO Box 1143 
West Perth WA 6872

Phone/Fax Telephone: (08) 9791 0836
Facsimile: (08) 9791 0835

Kununurra
Location 270 Bandicoot Drive

Kununurra WA 6743
Postal Address PO Box 630

Kununurra WA 6743
Phone/Fax Telephone: (08) 9168 0602

Facsimile: (08) 9168 0600

Contact Details

mailto:info%40lands.wa.gov.au?subject=
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